
WHAT IS AN OBJECTIVE? 

Objectives are the actual outcomes you expect from your 

project. You may have several objectives. If there are too 

many your project will become difficult to manage. Objective 

statements usually include words like ‘improve’, ‘reduce’ or 

‘develop’. Like goals, objectives need to be S.M.A.R.T. 

Objectives should be informed by the 

evidence of what works 

They should build on what is already being done and be linked 

to what you know about the injury problem and by using a well 

known and accepted injury prevention model, such as: 

» Haddons Matrix 

» 5 E’s of injury prevention 

» The Spectrum of Prevention 

» Passive vs Active 

In order to write your objectives you should identify the risk 

factors or causes of the problem and think about what would 

help fix it, keeping in mind what is already happening. These 

will become your objectives. 

LIKE GOALS, OBJECTIVES NEED 
TO BE 

S.M.A.R.T 

AN EXAMPLE OF AN ACTIVE OBJECTIVE 

Increase local plumbers awareness of the main consequences 

of hot tap water scalds as well as plumbing changes that can 

be recommended to clients to prevent scalds. 

A FURTHER EXAMPLE OF A PASSIVE OBJECTIVE 

By 2010, to increase the number of existing homes (excluding 

new homes built since May 1998) that have installed one type 

of hot water temperature control device from baseline (n = 

1300 homes) to 2,600 homes in the Smith Council area, by 1st 

April 2010. 
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WHAT IS A STRATEGY/ACTION? 

A strategy/action is what you are going to provide or deliver in 

your project/programme. The strategy will state what and how 

you are going to achieve your objective. 

Effectiveness of strategies/actions is measured by process 

evaluation. 

In order to achieve your strategies you will 

need to think about a number of things 

such as: 

» What you will do
 

» How you will do it
 

» Who can help
 

» When it will be done by
 

For example strategies related  to the objective used 

previously, to increase plumbers awareness could include: 

» Develop a plumbers education session about the  

consequences of hot tap water scalds 

» Liase with the Plumbers Association 

» Identify and invite a guest speaker 

» Book venue and arrange catering 

» Promote the education session 

KEEPING YOUR PROJECT ON THE RIGHT 
TRACK 

Your project needs to keep moving towards its goal. Motivating 

people and ensuring that project members continue 

contributing to the project can be challenging. The following 

strategies can help to keep your project on the right track. 

■		 Hold regular project meetings where team members report 

back on progress and monitor task completion. 

■		 Use these meetings to discuss resource allocation, budget 

and any unexpected issues that have occurred. 

■		 When you send out the minutes of your meeting, include a 

separate action sheet at the front so that people know what 

they have to do. 

■		 Make sure you recognise the role played by team members 

by showing appreciation both during and on completion of 

the project. 

■		 Celebrate successes. 

HOW/WHY Diagram 

There are important links between your goal, your 

objectives and your activities. The best way to check 

whether you have your goal, objectives and your 

strategies/activities linked correctly is to ask HOW? 

and WHY? questions. The WHY questions will move you 

to a higher level. HOW questions will move you to a 

lower level. The diagram (right) shows how these links 

and questions work. 

GOAL: 

OBJECTIVES: 

STRATEGY/ACTIVITY: 

Ask yourself ‘HOW’ three times and 
‘WHY’ three times to help you ensure 
you have explored all options. 

THIS IS A VERY 
BRIEF OVERVIEW 
OF THIS PROCESS, 
you should explore 
opportunities for 
more in depth 
training to further 
your knowledge in 
this area. 
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THE ACTION PLAN 

Here is a suggested template with ideas for an action plan. 

It’s one approach of many. 

Adapt it to suit the purpose of your project. 

OBJECTIVES: 
WHAT WE WANT TO 

ACHIEVE 

ACTIONS 
WHAT WE WILL DO 

ACTIVITIES AND 

MEASURES 
HOW WE WILL DO IT 

TIMELINE: 
COMPLETED BY 

SUCCESS 

INDICATORS: 

1. 

Increase local plumbers 

awareness of the main 

consequences of hot tap 

water scalds as well as 

plumbing changes that 

can be recommended to 

clients to prevent scalds. 

Develop training session, 

pretest and pilot. 

Train the trainer using 

National Plumbing 

Institute staff. Put 

together training pack. 

28 February 2010 Training plan 

developed, Powerpoint 

presentation developed, 

Training pack 

developed. 

Hold a two hour 

education session for 

plumbers with dinner 

and guest speakers in 

3 towns within Smith 

District. 

Book venue, send 

invitations, organise 

and brief speakers 

from Burns Support 

Group, NZ Hot Water, 

Association. 

31 March 2010 20 local plumbers 

attend education 

session. 

2. 

By 2010, to increase 

the number of existing 

homes that have 

tempering values fitted 

from baseline (n = 1300 

homes) to 2,600 homes in 

the Smith Council area. 

Raise awareness of 

dangers of hot tap water 

to Housing New Zealand 

and Council and identify 

solutions. 

Develop presentation 

and meet with Housing 

NZ and Council to raise 

awareness of need 

for installation of hot 

water temperature 

control devices in their 

property stock by 31st 

March 2010. 

31 March 2010 Agreement in place by 

Council and Housing 

NZ to install tempering 

valves in 20%  of 

housing stock per 

annum. 

3. 

Increase public 

awareness of hot liquid 

burns and scalds and 

prevention strategies. 

Develop a pamphlet to be 

distributed to parents of 

all babies born at Smith 

hospital. 

Develop a working 

display. 

Work with Safekids NZ 

and Master Plumbers 

Gas Fitters Drainlayers 

Association to collate 

factual information 

for pamphlet and 

display work with 

display company and 

parents group to design 

working display. 

30 April 2010 All new parents receive 

information about burns 

and scalds. 

Working display 

installed and part 

of parent education 

programme at Parent 

Centre. 

GOAL: 

To reduce the number of hot tap water scalds by 10% in children aged 0-4 years  living in the Smith 

Council area by December 2010. 
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EVALUATION
 
WHAT IS EVALUATION? 

Evaluation is the process used to report whether a programme 

or particular part of a programme or project has achieved what 

it set out to do. It should begin as soon as you come up with 

the idea for your safety activity and should continue throughout 

the life of your activity and end after the activity is finished. 

By evaluating each step you will find and solve any problems 

early, identify unexpected benefits or problems, save resources 

and improve your chance of success. 

There are THREE main reasons for 
evaluation: 

1. Evaluations provide useful information on whether 

the project is running according to plan, whether it is 

within budget and whether it has achieved its goals and 

objectives. 

2. By identifying STRENGTHS and WEAKNESSES, the 

programme can be modified and adapted for better 

results. 

3. Information from evaluations of a number of 

projects provides understanding of community safety 

and practical strategies for prevention opportunities to 

be replicated or transplanted to other areas. 

There are lots of different ways to evaluate a project. Early in 

the planning process it is essential to think about what method 

(or combination of methods) is suitable. This can then be built 

into the development of the programme or project. 

This is a brief overview of evaluation. 

There are many resources and training 

courses that are available and it 

is recommended that you explore 

opportunities to further your knowledge. 

Before selecting a method and designing a suitable format, 

it is important to clarify the reasons behind any evaluation 

exercises and how the information will be used. 

INFORMATION GATHERED FROM EVALUATION CAN: 

» check for success or areas where the plan is not working 

» indicate quality of process, information or delivery 

» indicate involvement or participation by community,  

sponsors, staff, consultants, clients, etc 

» add to the group and community learning 

» add to the group process and understanding 

EVALUATION CAN BE USED TO: 

» help with future planning 

» provide new or better ideas 

» assist with promoting and endorsing the programme or  

 project 

» assist in networking and further developing good  

 relationships 

» provide information about costs and savings 

» improve the programme or project 

» attract funding and support 

» create good publicity 

» aid accountability 

EVALUATION AND PROJECT PLANNING 

How to incorporate evaluation into existing and new activities. 

For your activity to succeed, it is important to ask yourself these 

questions during the project planning process. 

What ethical considerations are there? 

our community safety activity? What is the 

What resources do we have available to evaluate 

(confidentiality, protection of identity etc) 

costs and other resources needed? (equipment, 
Who is interested in the findings and what are 

vehicles, meeting places, etc) 
their needs? (funders, providers, sponsors, 

What is the purpose of the evaluation? participants, specific groups etc) 

(what specific information you want) 
How will we collect the information? 

What type of information is going to be collected? 
CONTINUED... 
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Who is the information going to be collected from? How will we analyse the evaluation findings? 

Who is going to collect the information? (internal Who will write the final report? 

process or external independent evaluator) 
How will the results be disseminated? 

What is the timeframe for each phase of the 

evaluation? 

EVALUATION TYPE WHAT IT IS WHEN TO USE IT WHAT IT SHOWS WHY IT IS USEFUL 

FORMATIVE A way to ensure project 

plans, procedures, 

activities, materials and 

modifications works as 

planned 

As soon as an idea for 

an activity is developed 

When an existing activity 

is modified for use in 

a new setting, with a 

new priority group, or to 

target a new problem 

When an activity has 

problems with no 

obvious solutions 

Strengths and 

weaknesses of 

proposed activities 

How the priority group 

gets information 

Who is the respected 

spokesperson for the 

priority group 

Details of possible 

problems 

Allows changes to be 

made to an activity 

before it begins 

Increases the chance 

of success 

PROCESS A way to ensure the 

activity is working 

effectively as planned 

and whether the 

number of people being 

reached is more or less 

as expected 

As soon as your activity 

begins 

How well an activity is 

working 

How the activity is 

operating 

Allows you to assess 

satisfaction 

Increases the 

likelihood of the 

activity being copied 

IMPACT A way to assess the 

immediate effects of an 

activity 

After the activity has 

made contact with at 

least one person in the 

priority group 

Changes in the priority 

group’s knowledge, 

attitudes and beliefs 

Whether an activity is 

on track to achieve its 

objectives 

Allows you to assess 

satisfaction 

Increases the 

likelihood of the 

activity being copied 

OUTCOME* A way to assess 

how well an activity 

succeeded in achieving 

its goal 

Changes in priority 

group behaviour 

Allows the team to 

learn from successes 

and failures and use 

what they learn in 

other activities 

Provides evidence of 

success for use in 

future requests for 

funding 

DEFINING EVALUATION 

The following table describes the differences between formative, process, impact and 

outcome evaluation. It describes when to use each type of evaluation, what the evaluation 

shows and why it is useful. 

Guidelines for conducting evaluations produced by the 

Safe Community Foundation New Zealand (SCFNZ) is 

a useful document to assist with project evaluation. 

Go to www.safecommunities.org.nz 

*Outcome evaluation requires substantial resources, skills and long time frames. It is 

often difficult and unrealistic for community-based providers to undertake outcome 

evaluations alone. Therefore, for community-based safety activities, it is more 

appropriate to use formative, process or impact evaluation. 
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EVALUATION WILL INCLUDE THE COLLECTION OF:
 

QUANTITATIVE DATA 

Quantitative Data is analysed using statistical and other 

mathematical methodologies. (How many events and 

activities took place, how many people were involved, 

how many different organisations and agencies took part, 

gender and ethnicity data) 

Go to www.moh.govt.nz/moh.nsf/indexmh/hiasupportunit 

QUALITATIVE INFORMATION 

Acknowledges the restrictions of quantitative data 

and gathers other kinds of information to help assess 

whether the programme or project was worthwhile and 

to what degree it achieved its aims or objectives. It helps 

to assess the quality of the programme or project (who 

were the participants, what did they represent, did they 

gain new insights, did they understand the ideas, was the 

information relevant to their work, to their cultural context, 

do they see issues differently, has it changed the way they 

work, what was the most useful, what was least useful, 

how did they hear about it etc). 

In evaluation, the method you choose depends on the questions 

you are trying to answer. It is important to choose the method 

that best suits the data you are collecting. Any evaluations 

should include both quantitative and qualitative information. 

INTERPRETING AND REPORTING YOUR 
RESULTS 

It is important that you think about how you are going to 

present your progress and results. A simple progress report 

should include the following information: 

»	 The name of the project 

»	 The injury issue including circumstances of injury, key  

target group, key risk factors and cultural and ethnic 

»	 Interventions including detail of an appropriate  

model and/or strategy 

»	 Who the partners/key stakeholders/champions were 

»	 The project goal, objectives and strategies/activites 

»	 Budget/Resources 

»	 Outcomes of the project 

The following table COMPARES QUANTITATIVE AND 

QUALITATIVE methods of data collection. 

Quantitative Qualitative 

Used during Process 

evaluation 

Outcome 

evaluation 

Formative 

evaluation 

Outcome 

evaluation 

Outcome evaluation Changes in 

knowledge, 

attitudes, skills, 

environment, 

behaviours, 

and level of 

satisfaction 

Feelings, beliefs 

and impression of 

participants 

Outcome evaluation Surveys 

Questionnaires 

Document 

reviews 

Focus groups 

Personal 

interviews 

Observations 

Case Studies 
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Depending on the purpose of the evaluation, the time and resources available, methods 

might include one or more of the following: 

TOOL USE 

For standardised 

DON’T USE 

When you need detailed 

ADVANTAGES 

Anonymous 

DISADVANTAGES 

Wording can bias SURVEYS/ 
QUESTION­
NAIRES 

responses from a 

large group 

For easily measurable 

information 

To compare response 

changes before and 

after an activity 

For quick, non­

threatening 

information gathering 

information from a 

small group 

When you want to 

emphasise context 

rather than numbers 

When you need to tell 

a story 

Easy to compare and 

analyse 

Can reach many people 

Can provide lots of data 

Many samples already 

exist 

Can provide quantitative 

data 

responses 

Impersonal 

May need sampling 

expert 

Gives limited 

understanding of the 

issue 

FOCUS GROUPS To find out agreement 

or disagreement on 

a topic 

With small groups of 

similar people 

To get a range of ideas 

on a topic 

To tell a story 

When you don’t have a 

good facilitator 

When the group is not 

comfortable with each 

other 

When you want to 

compare before and 

after responses 

When the group is not 

interested in the topic 

Provide quick, reliable 

common impressions 

Quickly provide range 

and depth of information 

Can give key information 

about activities 

Hard to analyse 

Need good facilitator 

Difficult to schedule 

Can be open to peer and 

social pressure 

TELEPHONE For long-term follow To get lots of detailed Can provide full range Time consuming 

INTERVIEWS 
up information and depth of information Hard to analyse 

When the group can’t When anonymity is Can help develop Costly
get together important relationships 

Can bias responses 
Flexible 

Require trained 
Better response rate interviewers 
than mailed surveys 

Less anonymity 

IN-PERSON To collect key data When anonymity is Good for discussing Time consuming 

INTERVIEWS For open-ended 

discussion 

important 

When you need 

sensitive issues 

individually 
Can bias responses 

Hard to anlayse and 

To get in-depth quantitative data Can provide in-depth compare 

information on an experience 
Require trained 

individual basis interviewers 

No anonymity 

Costly 

DOCUMENT To help implement an If you are unsure about Can provide Can influence activity 

REVIEW 
activity 

To compare external 

the reliability or validity 

of the data 

comprehensive and 

historical data 
Time Consuming 

Labour intensive 
data Doesn’t interrupt activity 

Hard to code and 
Data already exists analyse data 

Relatively unbiased 

OBSERVATIONS To see first-hand how 

an activity operates 

If observer will disrupt 

participants 

Give firsthand 

knowledge 

Can uncover unknown 

problems 

Can get non-verbal 

information from 

participants 

Objective 

Can influence activity 

Time Consuming 

Labour intensive 

Hard to code and 

analyse data 

CASE STUDIES To understand 

or demonstrate 

particpants’ 

experiences 

With a large group Fully show participants’ 

experience with activity 

Good for demonstrating 

activity to outsiders 

Time consuming 
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PROMOTING 
INJURY PREVENTION 

USE THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES TO HELP YOU. 

IF IT’S NEWS – THEY WANT IT – NOW! 

KEEPING INJURY PREVENTION IN 
THE HEADLINES 

The media is powerful for shaping 

public attitudes. 

Using local media can raise awareness about 

community issues, and their impact, effect and 

how change can occur. 

Media stories can motivate communities 

and bring supports for change into 

community action. 

Media outlets need news every day. 

Messages and information presented in 

a ready-to-use media format are most 

likely to get noticed. 

Emphasising the news value of a message is the 

recipe for effective media coverage. 

KNOW YOUR LOCAL MEDIA 

COMMUNITY NEWSPAPERS 

In each locality there will be at least one community 

newspaper that is delivered free to every household. They rely 

heavily on contributions from 

individuals and organisations 

in their readership community 

as the staff is usually small. 

Community newspapers are 

usually published once or twice 

a week so are more interested in “soft” news which doesn’t 

go out of date after one day. It might be forthcoming events, 

profiles or people, information about activities and human 

interest stories. 

Check out media sources often targeted to particular audiences 

such as migrant peoples, youth etc. 

A community newspaper’s deadline will usually be one or more 

days before publication day. 

ADVANCE PLANNING WILL HELP YOU GET 
FREE PUBLICITY FOR COMMUNITY EVENTS. 

Community newspapers 

are more interested in 

local news 

THIS IS THE ‘FRONT PAGE OR SHOPWINDOW’ OF YOUR WORK. 
MAKE SURE YOU GET TRAINING AND/OR ADVICE TO ACHIEVE 
THE BEST IMPACT FOR YOUR INTERVENTION. 
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NEWSLETTERS 

Regular newsletters can also be a good way of getting your 

safety stories to the community. Producing a good newsletter 

will take time and money, so consider your budget, timeframe 

and resources before you start. 

Ask yourself: 

» What do you want to achieve with a newsletter? 

» How will a newsletter support your organisation’s  

 objectives? 

» Who are your key audiences? 

» What do you want to say to them? 

» Is a newsletter the best way to do this? 

» What is your budget? A newsletter can be expensive if  

you’re planning to use a graphic artist and produce it in  

 colour. 

» How many pages will it be and how often will it come out? 

» How many people will be on your mailing list? 

» How much time will you have to write and edit a  

newsletter? 

REGULAR NEWSLETTERS CAN 
ALSO BE A GOOD WAY OF GETTING 
YOUR SAFETY STORIES TO THE 
COMMUNITY 

Newsletter tips 

■		 Articles should be interesting, easy to understand, up-to­

date, informative, and accurate, have a safety outcome and 

not assume any knowledge of the reader. 

■		 Invent a catchy headline for each article. 

■		 Always show stories to those who are quoted in a story. 

■		 Aim for a consistent look for each issue. 

■		 Use high quality pictures for impact and to break up the 

text. 

■		 Get permission to use information or pictures from other 

sources, otherwise you may be infringing copyright. 

■		 Get your newsletter proofread by another person. 

■		 Include a variety of articles – with a local, regional and 

national focus. 

■		 Use boxes to separate and highlight key information. 

■		 Invite submission from others (provide editorial guidelines 

to ensure consistent content). 

■		 Allow plenty of time for signing off stories by key internal 

and external stakeholders. 

■		 Use white space for effect – don’t fill every space on the 

page with print. 

■		 Make sure your pictures have captions. 

■		 Make sure everyone on the team is aware of key 

milestones and deadlines. 

■		 Finally: keep you mailing database up-to-date – remove 

names and addresses when copies of your newsletter 

come back marked Return to Sender or when recipients 

ask to unsubscribe. 

Electronic newsletters 

Electronic newsletters (either emailed or posted on websites) 

are becoming increasingly common. While electronic 

newsletters can be cheaper and simpler to send out than hard 

copy – you need to consider whether this format is suitable for 

your audience and how many recipients have access to email 

and the internet. Be careful about the number and format 

of photographs/graphics as these can be difficult and time 

consuming to download. 
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The formula for radio 

bulletins is SHORT, SHARP 

news and stories. 

RADIO
 

Radio is the most immediate of all media outlets. 

It is always first with the news and can be updated hourly – or 

instantly. 

The formula for radio bulletins is short, sharp news and 

stories. 

Radio reporters want quotes that are easy to understand and 

make a point quickly and succinctly (the 10-second soundbit). 

Some radio programmes use a documentary or magazine style 

to look at issues in more depth. 

Radio New Zealand has a network of reporters nationwide and 

there are many local radio stations in each region. 

National radio likes big news events such as  injury deaths but 

there are many community stations interested in publicising 

local events and initiatives and talking to local people about 

local issues. 

Television reporters 

look for stories with 

DRAMA 
that can be told 

with interviews and 

pictures 

DAILY NEWSPAPERS 

Daily newspapers want fresh news. By tomorrow what’s 

happening today will be old news. 

Knowing and fitting in with a daily newspaper’s deadlines 

makes it more likely that a story will be published. (Morning 

dailies have a deadline the night before. Afternoon dailies have 

early-to-mid morning deadlines). 

DAILIES WANT ‘HARD NEWS’, THAT IS, EVENTS THAT IMPACT 

ON LOCAL READERS, FOR EXAMPLE: 

» Injury deaths and hospitalisations 

» Statistics about who’s getting injured 

» Drink driving/speeding offences 

» Demand on emergency services 

» The results of research or a survey 

» A visit or speech by a notable person 

» Community prevention plans 

» Community action activities 

One or two days a week there may be space for feature articles 

which look at issues in more depth, such as local trends in 

injuries or an increase in a particular injury issue such as 

drownings or sport related falls, suicide or assaults. 

Most dailies will have a reporter responsible for reporting 

injury issues. They could be a social issues or health reporter. 

TELEVISION 

Television tells the news with pictures and can bring a story to 

life with live interviews. Television reporters look for stories 

with drama that can be told with interviews and pictures, such 

as those with ambulances, armed offenders, smashed cars, 

graphic injuries, live interviews at the scene. 

Television documentaries look at a topic in depth. This could 

be a story about a person affected by injury or an issue such 

as actions to prevent childhood injuries and how effective they 

are. 
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WHAT IS AN INJURY?
 

Any damage to the body resulting from exposure to 

external energy sources such as mechanical energy, heat, 

electricity or chemicals or in some cases injuries that 

result from the sudden lack of essentials such as oxygen 

or heat (World Health Organisation) 

An injury can be defined as unintentional or intentional 

damage to the body resulting from contact with 

environmental hazards or with other people (Safe 

Communities Foundation New Zealand (SCFNZ)) 

ACCIDENT VS INJURY EVENTS 

Many people have thought that injuries are simply the results 

of accidents, which are typically considered to be unpredictable 

and unpreventable, but they are not. The first principle of injury 

prevention is that injuries occur as the result of events that can 

be predicted and prevented. By studying and understanding 

these events we can develop strategies to minimise the risk 

and ultimately the likelihood of injuries. 

ANALYSING LOCAL INJURY ISSUES 

Good information guides good programme 

development and delivery. 

One of the initial steps in preventing injuries is to know how 

many, what type and where injuries are occurring. Statistics 

provide one dimension of this picture. 

To generate statistics for your area go to the National Injury 

Query System (NIQS). Be aware that most datasets have 

limitations. Build a picture using a range of sources of 

information. 

NIQS allows you to choose the injury mechanism(s), intent(s), 

year(s), age group(s) or District Health Board(s) or Territorial 

Authority of interest to you and produce statistics on the 

numbers and rates of cases. You will find the most recent 

injury deaths (mortality) and hospitalisation (morbidity) 

statistics for your area here: 

www.otago.ac.nz/ipru/Statistics/Statistics.html 

If this system can’t answer your questions you can ask for a 

specialised request at StatsEnquiry@ipru.otago.ac.nz 
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Commonly injuries are either intentional 
or unintentional 

Intentional Injury – injuries that are deliberate e.g. from abuse, 

suicide, rape, assault 

Unintentional Injury – Injuries where there was no plan or intent 

e.g. from a motor vehicle crash, fall, drowning. 

It is important also to capture information, from within the 

community you are working with. The ‘stories’ of how injuries 

are happening, where and to whom can help, along with the 

statistics can help you get a thorough picture of injury issues in 

your community. Your local hospital A & E department, schools, 

GP’s, St Johns, Police, parents, sports administrators, rest 

homes and many other community members will be able to 

provide community information. 

FOR DECISION MAKERS 

mailto:StatsEnquiry@ipru.otago.ac.nz


LEGISLATION 
AND THE NEW ZEALAND 
INJURY PREVENTION 
STRATEGY 

Various legislation and the New Zealand 

Injury Prevention Strategy (NZIPS) provide the 

framework and direction for injury prevention 

activity in New Zealand. 

There are also six strategies that focus on priority areas, which 

together account for at least 80% of all injury deaths and serious 

injuries in New Zealand. They are:­

Each of these national strategies 
has an action/implementation plan 
that identifies activities of interest to 
regional and local decision makers. 

There will be opportunities to identify regional/local 

priorities and directions that align to the National 

Strategies and contact with the Lead Agencies should be 

made to explore these further. 

www.nzips.govt.nz/priorities/ 

INJURY PREVENTION	 RESPONSIBLE
LEAD AGENCY STRATEGIES/ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA	 MINISTER 

1 Motor vehicle traffic crashes	 Ministry of Transport 

2 Suicide and deliberate self-harm	 Ministry of Health 

Accident Compensation
3 Falls 

Corporation 

4 Assault/Sexual Violence	 Ministry of Justice 

Workplace Injuries (including 
5	 Department of Labour

occupational diseases) 

Accident Compensation
6 Drowning 

Corporation 

Alcohol has been identified as a key risk factor 

for many injuries. Many agencies and communities are 

taking action to address harm caused by alcohol. ALAC 

has the lead role to address the drinking culture in New 

Zealand and contribute to a reduction in alcohol-related 

injuries and deaths. www.alac.org.nz 

Road Safety Strategy to 2010 Strategy 

New Zealand Suicide Prevention 

Strategy 2006-2016 

Prevention of Injuries from Falls: the 

National Strategy 2005-2015 

Te Rito: New Zealand Family Violence 

Prevention Strategy/Taskforce for 

Action on Violence within Families 

Workplace Health and Safety Strategy 

for New Zealand to 2015 

The Drowning Prevention Strategy: 

Towards a Water Safe New Zealand 

2005-2015 

The 2008/11 Implementation Plan provides 

detailed information about the progress of 

the New Zealand Injury Prevention Strategy. 

You should source this document and 

consider how you can align regional/local 

priorities. www.nzips.govt.nz 

Minister for Transport 

Associate Minister of Health 

Associate Minister for ACC 

Ministry of Justice 

Minister of Labour 

Associate Minister for ACC 

FOR DECISION MAKERS 
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 

A comprehensive list of the relevant acts, statutes, rules and 

regulations are available on www.nzips.govt.nz/resources/ 

index.php 

There are a number of Acts of Parliament that 

give the mandate for injury prevention action. 

These include:­

Alcohol Advisory Council Act 1976 

An Act to provide for the establishment of an Alcoholic Liquor 

Advisory Council having as its primary objective the promotion 

of moderation in the use of alcoholic liquor and the reduction 

of the personal, social, and economic evils resulting from the 

misuse of alcoholic liquor, to define the Council’s functions and 

powers, and to make provision for the funding of the Council’s 

activities by means of a levy on alcoholic liquor imported into 

or manufactured in New Zealand. 

Health and Safety in Employment Act 1992 

The law relating to the health and safety of employees, and 

other people at work or affected by the work of other people 

Injury Prevention, Rehabilitation,and 

Compensation Act 2001 

Providing for a fair and sustainable scheme for managing 

personal injury that has, as its overriding goals, minimising 

both the overall incidence of injury in the community, and the 

impact of injury on the community (including economic, social, 

and personal costs). 

Local Government Act 2002 

The purpose of this Act is to provide for democratic and 

effective local government that recognises the diversity of 

New Zealand communities; and, to that end, this Act— 

a. states the purpose of local government; and 

b. provides a framework and powers for local authorities 

c. decide which activities they undertake and the manner 

in which they will undertake them; and 

d. promotes the accountability of local authorities to their

 communities; and 

e. provides for local authorities to play a broad role in
 

promoting the social, economic, environmental, and
 

cultural wellbeing of their communities, taking a
 

sustainable development approach.
 

THE ROLE OF LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT COUNCIL 

Local Government/Territorial Authorities have a 

mandate through the Local Government Act 2002 to 

‘promote the social, economic, environmental, and 

cultural wellbeing of their communities, taking a 

sustainable development approach. 

Local Government is in a very good position to 

advocate for, influence, lobby and take leadership with 

Injury Prevention issues. 

It is important that communities through the Long 

Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) process 

raise safety issues and seek Council participation in 

partnerships to develop and implement solutions. 

For details about your Territorial authority go to 

www.lgnz.co.nz 
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LEADERSHIP 

Injury Prevention needs leadership at the national, regional 

and local level. 

Given the complex causality of injury, prevention requires 

action across a range of sectors at local, regional and national 

levels. Each sector has a role to play and contribution to make 

by: 

»	 promoting injury prevention within their own organisations 

and with external partners, 

»	 ensuring injury prevention becomes an integral part of  

national, regional and local plans and strategies, 

»	 identifying key figures in injury prevention, and to facilitate 

their involvement, and 

» working collectively on agreed national and/or regional and 

 local priorities. 

A champion or an advocate role can have a significant 

and positive impact on progressing injury prevention. Elected 

representatives who have the responsibility to keep their 

communities safe are often passionate champions who can 

get injury on the agenda. 

FOR DECISION MAKERS 



WORKING WITH OTHER SECTORS
 
WORKING TOGETHER WITH PARTNERS IS IMPORTANT, AS NO ONE AGENCY 
will have the resources and expertise to adequately address injury prevention alone. 

Partners aim to achieve something together that they could not achieve alone. 

There are a number of agencies/organisations with a mandate for or interest in reducing injuries in 

communities. The following links will be helpful to identify possible partners. 

Go to 

www.nzips.govt.nz/links/ 

for a complete list. 

These can be sourced via 

www.nzips.govt.nz/links/ 

For further links go to: 

There are a number of government agencies who work in to reduce injuries. 

There are a number of national organisations who support injury prevention work. 

There are a number of community organisations who support injury prevention work. 

INZED provides an up-to-date database of those working in the Injury Prevention sector. 

Go to http://inzed.fmhs.auckland.ac.nz 

Be sure to add your details to the database if they’re not there! 

There are also a number of international links that may be useful: 

Australian links 

Canadian links 

United States of America links 

United Kingdom and other international links 

Injury Prevention Network Aotearoa New Zealand  www.ipnanz.org.nz 

Safe Community Foundation New Zealand www.safecommunities.org.nz 

Safekids New Zealand www.safekids.org.nz 
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INJURY PREVENTION MODELS 

IN ORDER TO DEVELOP EFFECTIVE 
INJURY PREVENTION PROGRAMMES 
IT IS NECESSARY TO IDENTIFY 
PREVENTION OPPORTUNITIES. 

The following are well known and accepted models 

(approaches) for injury prevention. They provide a framework 

to develop, implement and maintain injury prevention 

programmes. 

SPECTRUM OF PREVENTION 

The Spectrum of Prevention is a practical working model for 

creating strategic social change that results in successful 

prevention of injuries. It outlines a continuum of seven 

strategies intended to reinforce, feed into and complement 

each other. Widely used in the child safety sector go to 

www.safekids.org.nz for more information and examples of the 

Spectrum in action. 

HADDON’S MATRIX 

Host Agent Social and 

Physical 

Pre-event 

Event 

Post-event 

Go to www.health.qld.gov.au/chipp/what_is/matrix.asp and 

www.health.qld.gov.au/chipp/what_is/countermeasures.asp for 

more information. 

INTERNATIONAL SAFE 
COMMUNITIES MODEL 

This approach to safety promotion and injury prevention 

encourages greater co-operation and collaboration to mobilise 

communities to take action to prevent injuries, developed by 

the WHO Collaborating Centre on Community Safety Promotion 

at the Karolinska Institute for Social Medicine (www.phs. 

ki.se/csp). In order to be designated as an International Safe 

Community the following six criteria must be met. 

An infrastructure based on partnership and collaborations,  1. 

governed by a cross-sectional group that is responsible for 

safety promotion in their community. 

Long-term, sustainable programmes covering both  2. 

genders and all ages, environments, and situations. 

Programmes that target high-risk groups and  3. 

environments, and programmes that promote safety for  

 vunerable groups. 

Programmes that document the frequency and causes of  4. 

injuries. 

Evaluation measures to assess programmes, process and  5. 

effects of changes. 

Ongoing participation in national and international Safe  6. 

 Communities networks. 

It is recommended that New Zealand communities wishing 

to apply for accreditation as a International Safe Community 

contact the Safe Communities Foundation New Zealand 

(SCFNZ) www.safecommunities.org.nz 

Diagram: Spectrum of Prevention 

HADDONS MATRIX 

This is a framework developed by Dr William Haddon as a 

method to generate ideas about injury prevention as well as 

injury causation. Haddon suggested that injury was caused by 

transference of some kind of energy (e.g. thermal, electrical, 

chemical) to a host by an agent in a particular environment. 

Using this concept Haddon also describes the chain of events 

before the injury (pre event), at time of injury (event) and after 

the injury (post-event). It is a useful framework for identifying 

risk factors and opportunities for preventing injury. 



PASSIVE VS ACTIVE INTERVENTIONS THE 5 E’S 

In the field of injury prevention there is a strong consensus that 

passive interventions, aimed at creating a safer environment, 

are more likely to be successful than active interventions. This 

emphasis on passive interventions parallels the management 

of other public health problems e.g. the regulation of hot water 

through a tempering valve is more successful in preventing 

burns, than asking people to test their water temperature, 

just as automatic sprinklers constitute a more effective fire 

protection than reliance on hand held extinguishers. 

THE 5 e’s - a range 
of strategies for controlling or 
preventing injuries 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 M
A

K
E

R
S

 T
O

O
L

K
IT

 
7

 

PASSIVE INTERVENTIONS 

Are those aimed at preventing injuries where the individual 

is not required to take any action (e.g. an airbag deploys 

automatically on impact). Passive interventions are 

interventions that are independent of human behaviour. 

ACTIVE INTERVENTIONS 

Are those where an individual’s behaviour is involved (e.g. 

a seat-belt requires the individual to put the belt on). Such 

interventions require some human involvement for their 

success. 

Go to: www.toronto.ca/health/injuryprevention/0to5/pdf/ 

growingupsafely_manual_appx02.pdf 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Is a process where people in communities manage and 

are active in change for the long term by working together 

strengthening social ties and setting goals that are aligned 

with the particular community culture and resources available. 

Community development might 

happen through: 

An incident in the community that heightens attention (eg a 

fatal injury) 

A group or individual campaigning to gauge the level of concern 

in the community 

Interested people getting together to discuss issues, exchange 

information and identify skills needed for action 

Letters or articles in local papers or radio interviews 

A working party/steering group being formed 

A specific opportunity for bringing the community together 

around an issue 

Spokespeople for the issue/working party publicising action to 

increase support 

A public meeting/a speaker/an event etc 

For more information go to 

http://maaori.com/develop/commwhat.html 

ENGINEERING 

Includes making products and environments safer for 

people. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MODIFICATIONS 

Aimed at reducing the likelihood that individuals will 

have an injury by reducing risks in the environment. 

ENFORCEMENT 

Includes legal and police measures aimed at ensuring 

that certain behaviours and norms are maintained in 

the population. It covers enforcement of laws directed 

at creating safe environments. It also covers laws and 

norms that ensure the production and distribution of 

safe products. 

EDUCATION 

Includes programmes aimed at changing attitudes, 

beliefs and behaviours in the general population but 

also targeting individuals who are at higher risk of 

having an injury or producing an injury. 

EVALUATION 

Refers to those actions aimed at determining which 

interventions, programmes and policies work best for 

injury prevention. It informs researchers, community 

practitioners and policy-makers on the best courses of 

action for prevention and control of injuries. 

For more info go to: 

www.health.qld.gov.au/chipp/what_is/e_of_injury.asp 

IT IS IMPORTANT  that your staff/community use a 

recognised model, or combinations of models to guide injury 

prevention work – it will help you consider a wide range of 

strategies to address injury prevention issues. 

There is a wealth of information about these models available. 

Go to www.communitynet.org.nz or www.health.qld.gov.au/chipp 



PLANNING AND EVALUATION
 

Your key contribution to successful injury prevention 

programmes in your community is to ensure that your staff 

have the resources and support to develop good project 

planning, monitoring and evaluation processes. 

Safekids New Zealand have developed a number of project 

plans for those with an interest in child safety, however 

you could use this framework for other injury issues. Go to 

www.safekids.org.nz/index.php/pi_pageid/71 

Guidelines for conducting evaluations produced by the Safe 

Community Foundation New Zealand (SCFNZ) is a useful 

document to assist with project evaluation. Go to www. 

safecommunities.org.nz/resources/guidelines/ 

There are indepth courses that explore this subject and 

it is vitally important that your staff understand these 

concepts thoroughly to be able to develop and deliver 

successful injury prevention programmes.The availability 

of these course varies throughout New Zealand so contact 

your District Health Board or Public Health Unit to ask 

about local opportunities. Key agencies such as the Injury 

Prevention Network of Aotearoa New Zealand (IPNANZ) 

and the New Zealand Injury Prevention Strategy Secretariat 

(NZIPS) may also be able to assist. 
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SUSTAINING YOUR PROGRAMME
 
BECOMING AN INTERNATIONAL SAFE COMMUNITY 

The Safe Communities Foundation New Zealand (SCFNZ) 

assists communities who are considering becoming part of the 

International Safe Community network. 

The International Safe Community approach to safety promotion 

and injury prevention encourages greater cooperation and 

collaboration between non-government organisations, the 

business sector, central and local government agencies, and 

creatively mobilizes local community members to action. The 

International Safe Communities model creates an infrastructure 

that was initiated in Sweden by the WHO Collaborating Centre 

on Community Safety Promotion at the Karolinksa Institute for 

Social Medicine (www.phs.ki.se/csp). 

Go to www.safecommunities.org.nz/becoming/accred for 

details of criteria and the process. 

To find out about the communities designated as International 

Safe Communities in New Zealand go to 

www.safecommunities.org.nz/sc 

in local communities for addressing injury prevention initiatives 

through the building of local partnerships. It is a programme 

FOR DECISION MAKERS 



BEST PRACTICE
 
INTERVENTIONS
 
There is much discussion both within the injury prevention 

sector and in related sectors such as public health, for the 

need for interventions to be based on sound knowledge and 

experience. It is important because funding agencies are 

increasingly focusing on evidence based practice. 

Injury prevention literature is varied and growing daily with a 

wide range of journal papers, abstracts and books available 

both electronically and in hard copy. No single source or 

electronic search will yield all the information you need. 

There are many information sources for you to investigate. 

For example the Alcohol Advisory Council of New Zealand 

website, has a section on resources relating to community 

action: 

www.alcohol.org.nz/PublicationsAndOrders.aspx 

Other websites include: 

Injury Prevention Information Centre www.fmhs. 

auckland.ac.nz/soph/centres/ipic. The centre summarises 

research and distributes it monthly in IPLit. 

Safekids New Zealand www.safekids.org.nz 

Family Violence Toolkit www.areyouok.org.nz/ 

community_action_toolkit.php 

The New Zealand Family Violence 

Clearinghouse is the national centre for collating and 

disseminating information about domestic and family 

violence www.nzfvc.org.nz 

EuroSafe, the European Association for Injury 

Prevention and Safety Promotion www.eurosafe.eu.com/ 

Child Injury Prevention Queensland, Australia 

www.health.qld.gov.au/chipp/ 

World Report on Child Injury www.who.int/ 

violence_injury_prevention/child/injury/world_report/en/ 

index.html 

World Health Organization How can injuries in 

children and older people be prevented? 

www.euro.who.int/Document/E84938.pdf 
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INJURY PREVENTION 
INFORMATION CENTRE 
THE INJURY PREVENTION 

TION CENTREINFORMA 
SUMMARISES RESEARCH MONTHLY 
AND DISTRIBUTES IT MONTHLY IN 
IPLIT. 

SafetyLit is a weekly review of all safety/injury prevention 

international literature. You can quickly scroll through to see

 an up to date overview of publications. 

http://www.safetylit.org/ 

You will hear words associated with evidence based 

practice and references to data bases such as the Cochrane 

Collaboration. Critically the Cochrane Collaboration’s major 

focus is on systematic reviews based essentially on random 

control trials to measure effectiveness of interventions where 

it is both possible and ethical to apply an intervention to one 

group of people and not another. In this way an impact can be 

identified reasonably precisely. They usually require a large 

sample size. 

In our day to day injury prevention work using such methods is 

not usually possible. If you search the Cochrane Collaboration 

for injury prevention interventions in general the reviews 

conclude with a statement referring to “insufficient evidence”. 

This is because the methods it generally reviews are 

inappropriate for “measuring” impact of interventions that 

involve a variety of actions and people. Yes we do need more 

research – that asks more relevant questions and notices 

relevant responses that are not best understood through 

numbers. 

Another way of finding out what you need to know is to talk 

to your colleagues, seek out a person known for their injury 

prevention expertise. You can also contact the Injury Prevention 

Information Centre. 

www.fmhs.auckland.ac.nz/soph/centres/ipic/iplit.aspx 

FOR DECISION MAKERS 



CAPACITY BUILDING/WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT 
PEOPLE WHO COME TO WORK IN THE INJURY PREVENTION SECTOR 
BRING SKILLS, EXPERIENCES AND QUALIFICATIONS FROM OTHER 
DISCIPLINES without necessarily having specific injury prevention knowledge and skills. The 

following certificate provides injury prevention specific training in New Zealand. 

IPNANZ FOUNDATION CERTIFICATE IN 

INJURY PREVENTION: TE AHO TAPU (FCIP) 

This three day course offered by the Injury Prevention Network 

of Aotearoa New Zealand (IPNANZ) was developed to provide 

training within the New Zealand National Qualifications 

Framework. 

Participants gain basic skills enabling them to 

run effective, good practice injury prevention 

projects as well as a clear understanding 

of injury prevention theory and community-

based practice. 

HIGHLY RECOMMENDED 

for those new to injury 

prevention 

This course runs twice a year in 

varying locations and is highly 

recommended in the first 12 – 18 

months for anyone beginning to 

work in the injury prevention field. 

It is also useful for those who have been working in the area 

for longer who may wish to update their skills and knowledge. 

Go to www.ipnanz.org.nz 

IPNANZ MENTORING PROGRAMME 

The IPNANZ Mentoring Programme provides ongoing support 

for practitioners who have completed the Foundation Certificate 

of Injury Prevention: Te Aho Tapu to further build knowledge 

of the injury prevention sector, further develop skills, receive 

feedback and independent support, increase awareness of 

resources, and increase clarity and definition of career goals. 

They are matched with a more experienced practitioner who 

has completed the IPNANZ Mentoring training. 

For more information go to www.ipnanz.org.nz 

To maintain and develop your staff skills in areas such as 

planning, evaluation and working with the media, look for local 

opportunities. You may also like to suggest further training as 

part of a professional development plan. Consider one of the 

following: 

»	 Certificate in Health Promotion 

»	 Post Graduate Diploma in Public Health 

»	 Some Australian Universities offer qualifications  

specific to injury prevention 
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A peer reviewed American study www.injuryed.org/ 

competencies.htm identified the following competencies to 

ensure violence and injury prevention professionals have 

the essential skills and knowledge to excel in this field. It is 

recognised that practitioners may not have all of the skills and 

knowledge in this list – it should be something to aim for as 

part of a professional development plan. 

Core competencies for violence and injury 

prevention professionals 

Describe and explain injury and violence as a major social 

and health problem. 

Access, interpret, use and present injury and violence data. 

Design and implement injury or violence prevention 

activities. 

Evaluate injury or violence prevention activities. 

Build and manage an injury or violence program. 

Disseminate information related to injury or violence 

prevention to the community; other professionals, key 

policymakers, and leaders through diverse communication 

networks. 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

■ 

Stimulate change 

related to injury 

or violence 

prevention 

through policy, 

enforcement, 

advocacy, and 

education. 

Maintain and further develop 

competency as an injury 

or violence prevention 

professional. 

Demonstrate the knowledge, skills and best practice 

necessary to address at least one specific injury or violence 

topic (eg motor vehicle occupant injury, fire and burns, 

suicide, drowning, child injury) and be able to serve as a 

resource regarding that area. 

FOR DECISION MAKERS 



KEY AGENCIES
 
AND WHAT THEY PROVIDE
 

ACC provides information and resources on preventing 

injuries at home, while playing sport, at work, on the farm, on 

the road and at school. They also lead the Drowning Prevention 

and Falls Prevention strategies. They have 29 branches 

throughout New Zealand, most of which have Injury Prevention 

Consultants. www.acc.co.nz/preventing-injuries/index.htm 

ALCOHOL ADVISORY COUNCIL OF NEW 
ZEALAND (ALAC) has a number of resources and 

information including research and publications on alcohol use 

and harm in New Zealand. www.alac.org.nz 

CHILD SAFETY FOUNDATION NZ works to 

promote change to minimise unintentional injury to children 

0-6 years. www.childsafety.co.nz 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOUR (DOL) leads the 

Workplace Health and Safety Strategy and provides statistics, 

reports and links to work in this area. www.dol.govt.nz 

FARMSAFE takes action to keep rural New Zealanders 

safe go to www.farmsafe.co.nz 

HEALTHED is a searchable catalogue of resources about 

key public health topics. www.healthed.govt.nz 

HEALTH RESEARCH COUNCIL OF NEW 
ZEALAND (HRC) is the major government funded 

agency responsible for purchasing and co-ordinating health 

research and fostering the health research workforce in New 

Zealand. www.hrc.govt.nz 

INJURY PREVENTION INFORMATION 
CENTRE (IPIC) provides access to information on the 

epidemiology of injury, the development of injury prevention 

strategies, and research on injury prevention interventions 

and their effectiveness, with an emphasis on the New Zealand 

environment and the unique needs of New Zealand Maori, 

Pacific and Asian populations. IPIC also publishes the Injury 

New Zealand e-Directory (INZED). For a full list of the centres 

services and resources. 

www.fmhs.auckland.ac.nz/soph/centres/ipic 

INJURY PREVENTION RESEARCH UNIT 
(IPRU) publishes research on a number of injury issues. 

They can also provide localised statistics through the National 

Injury Query Service (NIQS). www.otago.ac.nz/ipru/ 

INJURY PREVENTION NETWORK OF 
AOTEAROA NEW ZEALAND (IPNANZ) 
is a network to support the Injury Prevention sector 

They offer the Foundation Certificate in Injury Prevention: Te 

Aho Tapu (FCIP), a Mentoring programme as well as access to 

information and resources. www.ipnanz.org.nz 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT Contact your local Council – 

they have a mandate to promote social, cultural and economic 

wellbeing in your community. They have responsibility for 

a number of areas  including liquor licensing, road safety, 

swimming pool fencing and community safety. www.lgnz.co.nz 

MINISTRY OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS provides 

information and advice to consumers and businesses 

on product safety. They have also developed classroom 

resources to teach students to be active, critical and enquiring 

consumers. www.consumeraffairs.govt.nz 

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 
(MSD) works to help build successful individuals, and in 

turn build strong, healthy families and communities. Lead 

agency for the taskforce on Action for Violence within families. 

www.msd.govt.nz 

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION (MOE) is the 

Government’s lead advisor on the education system. Provides 

comprehensive information to the sector on health and safety 

issues. www.minedu.govt.nz 

MINISTRY OF HEALTH (MOH) lead agency for 

the New Zealand Suicide Prevention Strategy. The Ministry of 

Health also support and fund injury prevention through District 

Health Board (DHB) and direct contracts. www.moh.govt.nz 

MINISTRY OF JUSTICE (MOJ) works in 

partnership with local government and communities to 

promote, support and fund best-practice community based 

crime reduction initiatives and restorative justice programmes. 

Lead agency for the taskforce for Action on Sexual Violence. 

www.justice.govt.nz 
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